

Research and Information Service Briefing Paper

Paper 29/17 25 May 2017 NIAR 92-17

Compiled by Seán McGeown

Brexit and Northern Ireland: A Reading List

Research and Information Service briefings are compiled for the benefit of MLAs and their support staff. Authors are available to discuss the contents of these papers with Members and their staff but cannot advise members of the general public. We do, however, welcome written evidence that relates to our papers and this should be sent to the Research and Information Service, Northern Ireland Assembly, Room 139, Parliament Buildings, Belfast BT4 3XX or e-mailed to RLS@niassembly.gov.uk

CONTENTS

Introduction	Section 1
Governments	2
United Kingdom Government	
Government of Ireland	
Northern Ireland Executive	
Welsh Government	
Scottish Government	
Legislatures	3
Westminster Parliament	
 Houses of the Oireachtas/Tithe an Oireachtas 	
Northern Ireland Assembly	
National Assembly for Wales	
Scottish Parliament	
European Institutions	4
European Commission and European Council	
European Parliament	
Commentary and Analysis	5
Journal articles	
Centre for Cross Border Studies	
Centre on Constitutional Change	
Chatham House – The Royal Institute of International Affairs	
Constitution Unit (University College London)	
Democratic Audit UK	
Economic and Social Research Institute (ESRI)	
Ernst & Young (Ireland)	
EU Debate NI / Centre for Democracy and Peace Building	
Euractiv	

- European Council on Foreign Relations
- European Futures
- European Policy Centre
- German Institute for International and Security Affairs
- Institute for Government
- The Institute of International and European Affairs (IIEA)
- KPMG
- London School of Economics and Political Science
- Nevin Economic and Research Institute (NERI)
- Prime
- PWC (Ireland)
- QPOL (Queen's University Belfast)
- The UK in a Changing Europe (ESRC)
- Ulster Farmers' Union
- Ulster University

Media Coverage 6

1) INTRODUCTION

In the run up to the June 2016 referendum on the United Kingdom's membership of the European Union, the Research and Information Service (RaISe) published a <u>reading list</u> which sought to provide Members with a list of information resources that addressed the potential impacts on Northern Ireland of a decision to leave the European Union.

The result of the referendum, held on Thursday 23 June 2016, was that a majority (51.9%) voted for the UK to leave the European Union. In Scotland and Northern Ireland, however, a majority of voters voted to remain.

On 29 March 2017, the Prime Minister, Theresa May, wrote to the President of the European Council, Donald Tusk, to trigger Article 50 of the Treaty on European Union and initiate the process of UK withdrawal from the EU. RalSe is, therefore, now producing a list of information sources which have been published following the referendum result and the triggering of Article 50.

For political, economic, geographic and social reasons, the impacts on Northern Ireland of UK withdrawal from the EU might be expected to differ in important ways from the impact of withdrawal on other parts of the UK. Most obviously, Northern Ireland is unique in that it is the only part of the UK which has a land border with an EU Member State. When compiling the list, therefore, an attempt has been made to select commentary, analysis and media coverage which has particular relevance to the specific context of Northern Ireland and future of the border. The list, however, also includes strategically important documents, such as the published positions of the UK and Irish governments and the EU institutions. Similarly, material from the devolved institutions in Scotland and Wales has also been included, given the potential relevance and read-across to the work of the Executive and the Assembly.

As the volume of published material on Brexit is vast and varied, this reading list does not purport to be a single comprehensive source covering all issues and opinions. However, the material has been drawn from a wide range of well-established and authoritative sources and RalSe intends to update the reading list as appropriate.

2. GOVERNMENTS

UNITED KINGDOM GOVERNMENT

Plan for Britain

THE PRIME MINISTER'S OFFICE

- Prime Minister's letter to Donald Tusk triggering Article 50 (29 March 2017)
- Prime Minister's Commons statement on triggering Article 50 (29 March 2017)
- Speech: The government's negotiating objectives for exiting the EU (17th January 2017)
- News Release: <u>Devolved administrations vital to our success in the future</u> (24th October 2016)
- News Release: Joint Ministerial Committee Communiqué (24th October 2016)
- Speech: PM statement in Northern Ireland (25th July 2016)

DEPARTMENT FOR EXITING THE EUROPEAN UNION

- <u>UK leaving the EU: what you need to know</u> (April 2017)
- The Great Repeal Bill White Paper: <u>Legislating for the United Kingdom's withdrawal from</u> the <u>European Union</u> (March 2017)
- Q & A: Information about the UK leaving the EU (1 March 2017)
- Oral statement to Parliament: Exiting the European Union (2nd February 2017)
- Policy Paper: <u>The United Kingdom's exit from and new partnership with the European</u> <u>Union White Paper</u> (February 2017)

NORTHERN IRELAND OFFICE

- Ulster Farmers' Union Annual Dinner Speech (31 March 2017)
- Speech: Institute of International and European Affairs (IIEA) Speech (1st March 2017)
- Press Release: Brokenshire in Dublin for key sector meetings (13th February 2017)
- Speech: <u>Irish Times Brexit Summit closing speech</u> (7th November 2016)

GOVERNMENT OF IRELAND

News Release: <u>Government Statement on Brexit Preparations: Strategy for Negotiation Process</u> (2 May 2017)

<u>Ireland and the negotiations on the UK's withdrawal from the European Union: The Government's</u>

Approach (May 2017)

Address by the Taoiseach to the Institute of International and European Affairs on Ireland at the heart of a changing European Union' (15 February 2017)

Government Statement on Preparations for Brexit (4 October 2016)

Government Brexit Updates

Brexit FAQs: Your questions answered

Analysis

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

- Getting Ireland Brexit Ready (October 2016)
- UK EU Exit An Exposure Analysis of Sectors of the Irish Economy (October 2016)

NORTHERN IRELAND EXECUTIVE

The Executive Office: Letter to the Prime Minister, The Rt Hon Theresa May MP (10 August 2016)

WELSH GOVERNMENT

First Minister's Statement: Article 50 Response (29 March 2017)

White Paper: <u>Securing Wales' Future: Transition from the European Union to a new relationship</u> <u>with Europe</u> (January 2017)

SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT

Scotland's Place in Europe Key Events

Scotland's Place in Europe (December 2016)

Scotland: A European Nation (November 2016)

6

3. LEGISLATURES

WESTMINSTER PARLIAMENT

HOUSE OF COMMONS - Committees

Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy Committee: <u>Leaving the EU: Negotiation Priorities for Energy and Climate Change Policy</u> inquiry

Culture, Media and Sport Committee: <u>The Impact of Brexit on the Creative Industries, Tourism and the Digital Single Market</u> inquiry

Education Committee: The Impact of Exiting the European Union on Higher Education inquiry

Environmental Audit Committee

- The Future of Chemicals Regulation after the EU Referendum inquiry
- The Future of the Natural Environment after the EU Referendum inquiry

European Scrutiny Committee: **EU-UK relations in preparation for Brexit** inquiry

European Scrutiny Committee **jointly with** the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs Committee: **Brexit: Agriculture and Fisheries** inquiry

Exiting the European Union Committee: UK's Negotiating Objectives for Withdrawal from EU inquiry:

Foreign Affairs Committee

- Article 50 negotiations: Implications of 'No Deal' inquiry
- Implications of leaving the EU for the UK's role in the world inquiry

Health Committee: Brexit and health and social care inquiry

Home Affairs Committee:

- EU Policing and Security Issues inquiry
- Implications of the UK's Exit from the European Union inquiry

International Trade Committee: **<u>UK Trade Options Beyond 2019</u>** inquiry

Justice Committee

- Implications of Brexit for the Crown Dependencies inquiry
- Implications of Brexit for the justice system inquiry

Northern Ireland Affairs Committee:

- Future of the land border with the Republic of Ireland inquiry
- 1st Special Report: <u>Northern Ireland and the EU Referendum: Government Response to the</u> Committee's First Report (January 2017)

Public Administration and Constitutional Affairs Committee

Brexit and Devolution inquiry

Lessons Learned from the EU Referendum inquiry

Science and Technology Committee: <u>Leaving the EU: Implications and Opportunities for Science</u> and Research inquiry

Scottish Affairs Committee: Scotland's place in Europe inquiry

Treasury Committee: <u>UK's Future Economic Relationship with the EU</u> inquiry

Welsh Affairs Committee

- Agriculture in Wales Post-Brexit inquiry
- Implications for Wales of the EU referendum Result inquiry

Women and Equalities Committee

- Ensuring Strong Equalities Legislation After EU Exit inquiry
- Impact of Brexit on the Equalities Agenda inquiry

Work and Pensions Committee: **Brexit and Labour Market Policy** inquiry

HOUSE OF COMMONS LIBRARY PUBLICATIONS

Brexit and Gibraltar (2 May 2017)

Brexit timeline: events leading to the UK's exit from the European Union (2 May 2017)

Legislating for Brexit: the Great Repeal Bill (2 May 2017)

Brexit: a reading list of post-EU Referendum publications by Parliament and the Devolved Assemblies (2 May 2017)

Brexit reading list: Legal and constitutional issues (2 May 2017)

Brexit reading list: general coverage (2 May 2017)

Brexit: devolved legislature business (24 April 2017)

Brexit reading list: economic, business and transport policy issues (18 April 2017)

The European Arrest Warrant (18 April 2017)

Brexit: implications for national security (9 April 2017)

Legislating for Brexit: EU directives (5 April 2017)

Brexit: red lines and starting principles (31 March 2017)

Brexit: What next for UK fisheries? (14 March 2017)

Brexit & Financial Services (9 March 2017)

The UK's contribution to the EU Budget (15 February 2017)

A Guide to the EU budget (30 January 2017)

Debate Pack: Effect of the UK leaving the EU on the rural economy (16 January 2017)

Brexit: How will it affect transport? (17 November 2016)

Brexit: Employment Law (12 October 2016)

Brexit: trade aspects (8 September 2016)

Brexit: impact across policy areas (26 August 2016)

Brexit - implications for pensions (10 August 2016)

Brexit and UK immigration and asylum policy: a reading list (2 August 2016)

Brexit: Some legal and constitutional issues and alternatives to EU membership (28 July 2016)

The Common Travel Area, and the special status of Irish nationals in UK law (15 July 2016)

Brexit: What happens next? (29 June 2016)

Brexit: The process of leaving the EU (27 June 2016)

Tax after the EU Referendum (27 June 2016)

HOUSE OF LORDS - Committees

Economic Affairs Committee: Brexit and the Labour Market inquiry

EU Energy and Environment Sub-Committee:

- Brexit: Agriculture inquiry
- Brexit: Fisheries inquiry
- Brexit: Farm Animal Welfare inquiry
- Brexit: Environment and Climate Change inquiry

EU External Affairs Sub-Committee:

- Brexit: future trade between the UK and the EU inquiry:
- Brexit: Future Trade Between the UK and EU in Goods inquiry
- Brexit: Sanctions Policy inquiry

EU Financial Affairs Sub-Committee

- Brexit: EU Budget inquiry
- Brexit: Financial Services inquiry

EU Home Affairs Sub-Committee

- Brexit: The European Arrest Warrant inquiry
- Brexit: UK-EU Movement of People inquiry
- Brexit: Future EU-UK Security and Police Co-operation inquiry

EU Internal Market Sub-Committee: Brexit: Future Trade Between the UK and EU in Services inquiry

EU Justice Sub-Committee

- Brexit: Consumer Protection Rights inquiry
- Brexit: Civil Justice Cooperation and the CJEU inquiry
- Brexit: Acquired Rights inquiry

EU Select Committee:

- Brexit: UK-Irish relations inquiry
- Brexit: Devolution inquiry
- Brexit: Crown Dependencies inquiry
- Brexit: Gibraltar inquiry

LORDS LIBRARY PUBLICATIONS

Leaving the European Union: Status of Gibraltar (2 May 2017)

<u>Leaving the European Union: Frontex and UK Border Security Cooperation Within Europe</u> (25 April 2017)

Leaving the European Union: Profile of the EU27 (31 March 2017)

Leaving the European Union: World Trade Organisation (28 March 2017)

<u>European Union (Notification of Withdrawal) Act 2017 and Parliamentary Approval of the Outcome of Brexit Negotiations</u> (27 March 2017)

<u>European Union (Notification of Withdrawal) Act 2017 and the Rights of EU Nationals</u> (22 March 2017)

Leaving the European Union: The UK and Ireland (13 March 2017)

European Union (Notification of Withdrawal) Bill: Briefing for Lords Stages (20 February 2017)

<u>Leaving the European Union: Customs Unions - An Introduction</u> (27 January 2017)

<u>Leaving the European Union: The Single Market, the Rights of EU Citizens in the UK and the UK's</u> Future Economic Requirements (20 January 2017)

<u>Leaving the European Union: Impact on the Creative Industries</u> (13 January 2017)

Leaving the European Union: Machinery of Government Changes (16 December 2016)

<u>Leaving the European Union: UK Armed Forces and Diplomatic Service</u> (2 December 2016)

<u>Leaving the European Union: Future UK-EU Relationship</u> (25 November 2016)

Leaving the European Union: NHS and Social Care Workforce (18 November 2016)

Leaving the European Union: Funding for Universities and Scientific Research (27 October 2016)

Leaving the European Union: Global Free Trade (20 October 2016)

Leaving the European Union: Foreign and Security Cooperation (13 October 2016)

Leaving the European Union: Environment and Climate Change (13 October 2016)

Potential Effect on Peace and Security of the United Kingdom Leaving the European Union (12 October 2016)

UK-Commonwealth Trade (5 August 2016)

Leaving the European Union: Parliament's Role in the Process (4 July 2016)

HOUSES OF THE OIREACHTAS/TITHE AN OIREACHTAS

COMMITTEES

Joint Committee on Agriculture, Food and the Marine: Impact of the UK Referendum on Membership of the EU on the Irish Agrifood and Fisheries Sector inquiry

- Report (February 2017)
- Debates 2017
- <u>Debates</u> 2016
- Presentations

Joint Committee on Arts, Heritage, Regional, Rural and Gaeltacht Affairs: **Border Counties** (29 March 2017 and 6 April 2017)

- Debates
- Presentations

Joint Committee on Communications, Climate Action and Environment: The effect of the proposed withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union (Brexit) on the energy market in Ireland (14 and 28 February 2017)

- Debates
- Presentations

Joint Committee on Education and Skills: **The Implications of Brexit for the Irish Education System** (21 March 2017)

- Debate
- Presentations

Joint Committee on European Union Affairs: <u>UK Withdrawal from the EU: British Ambassador to Ireland</u> (4 April 2017)

Joint Committee on Foreign Affairs and Trade, and Defence – debates:

- Potential Impact of UK Withdrawal from the European Union (6 April 2017)
- Implications of Brexit for Foreign Policy/Implications of Brexit for Irish Exports (9 March 2017)

Joint Committee on Health – Debate: <u>Implications for Health Sector of United Kingdom's</u> Withdrawal from the EU (8 March 2017)

Committee on the Implementation of the Good Friday Agreement: Implications for Good Friday Agreement of UK Referendum Result

- Debates 2017
- Debates 2016

Joint Committee on Jobs, Enterprise & Innovation: The Likely Economic Impact of Brexit with Particular Emphasis on Jobs and Enterprise

- Report (March 2017)
- Debates
- Presentations

Seanad Special Select Committee on the Withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union

- Debates
- Presentations

LIBRARY & RESEARCH SERVICE

FAQs on the triggering of Article 50 (28 March 2017)

NORTHERN IRELAND ASSEMBLY

Private Members' Motions - Official Reports

EU Funding for the Agricultural Sector (21 November 2016):

A Vision for Northern Ireland outside the EU (19 September 2016)

<u>United Kingdom Withdrawal from the European Union</u> (27 June 2016)

Committees – Official Reports

Committee for the Executive Office:

- United Kingdom's Exit from the European Union: Department for the Economy,
 Department of Finance and the Executive Office (5 October 2016)
- United Kingdom's Exit from the European Union: Professor David Phinnemore, Queen's University Belfast (21 September 2016)

Committee for Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs:

- Brexit and Strategic Priorities: Northern Ireland Agricultural Producers Association and Ulster Farmers' Union (30 June 2016)
- Brexit and Strategic Priorities: Northern Ireland Environment Link, Royal Society for the Protection of Birds and Ulster Wildlife (30 June 2016)
- Brexit and Strategic Priorities: Northern Ireland Rural Women's Network, Rural Community Network and Rural Development Council (30 June 2016)
- Brexit: Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs (30 June 2016)

Northern Ireland Assembly Research and Information Service (RalSe)

Research Matters blog: Brexit

Briefing Papers for the eighth meeting of the North/South Inter-Parliamentary Association:

Impact of Brexit on Cross-Border Activity (November 2016)

Agri-food and Brexit (November 2016)

Briefing Paper: <u>Rural Development funding for the rural community (Priority 6 Schemes) – background and possible 'Brexit' considerations</u> (October 2016)

Briefing Paper: <u>Health and Social Care in NI - Areas of EU Competence</u>, <u>Action and Support - Potential Areas of Impact on Health and Social Care as a result of EU Referendum Decision</u> (October 2016)

Research Paper: **EU Referendum Update** (August 2016)

Briefing Paper: Northern Ireland's agri-food sector – background and possible 'Brexit' considerations (September 2016)

Briefing Paper: Northern Ireland's environment: background and potential 'Brexit' considerations

(September 2016)

Briefing Paper: Northern Ireland's fisheries sectors - background and possible 'Brexit'

considerations (September 2016)

Briefing Paper: Possible models for the UK-EU relationship post 'Brexit' (September 2016)

Briefing Paper: Public procurement after the European Union referendum (August 2016)

Briefing Paper: The EU Referendum and Northern Ireland: Information Resources (May 2016)

Knowledge Exchange Seminar Series (KESS)

Outcome of the European Referendum: A Northern Ireland Perspective (October 2016):

Policy Briefings:

- The EU referendum Vote in Northern Ireland: Implications for our understanding of citizens' political views and behaviour (John Garry, Professor of Political Behaviour, QUB)
- <u>EU Policy Competences after Brexit: Issues for Northern Ireland Opportunity Brexit?</u> (Dr Lee McGowan and Dr Viviane Gravey, QUB)
- Institutional Economic Implications for Northern Ireland (Dr Graham Brownlow, QUB)
- The Implications of Brexit for the Irish Border: Challenges and Options (Dr Katy Hayward, QUB)
- Northern Ireland and Brexit: Limits and Opportunities for a New Relationship with the EU (Prof David Phinnemore, QUB)

NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES

The Assembly Blog: Brexit

COMMITTEES

The Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee: <u>Inquiry into the Future of Agricultural and Rural Development Policies in Wales</u>

External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee:

- Implications for Wales of leaving the European Union inquiry
- The Great Repeal Bill and its implications for Wales inquiry

RESEARCH SERVICE

Brexit Updates

In Brief blog - Europe

Briefing: Wales and the EU - What does the vote to leave the EU mean for Wales? (June 2016)

SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT

COMMITTEES

Culture, Tourism, Europe and External Relations Committee: <u>The EU referendum and its implications</u> <u>for Scotland</u> inquiry

Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform Committee – Current Business: Europe

Equalities and Human Rights Committee: Brexit inquiry

Finance and Constitution Committee - Current Business: Intergovernmental Relations

Local Government and Communities Committee – Current Business: <u>Implications for Scottish Local</u> **Government of the United Kingdom Leaving the European Union**

Rural Economy and Connectivity Committee – Current Business: <u>Implications of the outcome of the EU Referendum for Scotland</u>

SCOTTISH PARLIAMENTARY INFORMATION CENTRE (SPICe)

<u>Implications of Leaving the EU – Fisheries</u> (March 2017)

Agriculture and Brexit in Ten Charts (February 2017)

<u>Implications of Leaving the EU – Forestry</u> (December 2016)

<u>Implications of Leaving the EU – Environment</u> (December 2016)

Brexit: Energy Policy (November 2016)

European Union Funding in Scotland 2014-2020 (November 2016)

EU nationals living in Scotland (November 2016)

Implications of Leaving the EU – Climate Change (November 2016)

Brexit: Impact on the Justice System in Scotland (October 2016)

Brexit: the impact on equalities and human rights (October 2016)

Brexit: Higher Education in Scotland (October 2016)

Options for the United Kingdom's future trading relationship with the European Union (October 2016)

The Economic Implications of Brexit (October 2016)

4. EUROPEAN INSTITUTIONS

EUROPEAN COMMISSION AND EUROPEAN COUNCIL

Taskforce on Article 50 negotiations with the United Kingdom

Speech by Michel Barnier at the Joint Houses of the Oireachtas (Houses of Parliament of Ireland), Dublin (11 May 2017)

Speech by Michel Barnier at the press conference on the adoption of the Commission's recommendation on draft negotiating directives (3 May 2017)

Recommendation for a Council Decision authorising the Commission to open negotiations on an agreement with the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland setting out the arrangements for its withdrawal from the European Union (3 May 2017)

Annex to the Recommendation for a Council Decision authorising the opening of the negotiations for an agreement with the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland setting out the arrangements for its withdrawal from the European Union: <u>Directives for the negotiation of an agreement with the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland setting out the arrangements for its withdrawal from the European Union</u> (3 May 2017)

Press Release: <u>European Commission takes next step in Article 50 process by recommending draft negotiating directives</u> (3 May 2017)

Fact Sheet: <u>European Commission's draft negotiating directives for Article 50 negotiations with</u> <u>the United Kingdom - Q&A</u> (3 May 2017)

Guidelines Following the United Kingdom's Notification under Article 50 (29 April 2017)

Negotiations with the United Kingdom infographic (29 April 2017)

Statement by the European Council (Art. 50) on the UK notification (29 March 2017)

Fact Sheet: Article 50 of the Treaty on European Union – Q&A (29 March 2017)

Speech by Michel Barnier, Chief Negotiator for the Preparation and Conduct of the Negotiations with the United Kingdom, at the plenary session of the European Committee of the Regions: <u>The Conditions for Reaching an Agreement in the Negotiations with the United Kingdom</u> (22 March 2017)

EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

Press Release: MEPs welcome unity on Brexit and call for reform of the EU (17 May 2017)

Press Release: Brexit negotiations: debate with Tusk, Juncker and Barnier on European Council's

conclusions (16 May 2017)

Press Release: Red lines on Brexit negotiations (6 April 2017)

COMMITTEE ON CONSTITUTIONAL AFFAIRS

Contribution of AFCO on the implications of the UK withdrawal from the EU (17 January 2017)

Policy Department Study: <u>The Impact of the UK's withdrawal from the EU on Scotland, Wales and Gibraltar</u> (April 2017)

Policy Department Study: <u>The impact and consequences of Brexit on acquired rights of EU citizens living in the UK and British citizens living in the EU-27</u> (April 2017)

Briefing: <u>The Impact and Consequences of Brexit for Northern Ireland</u> Author Jonathan Tonge (March 2017)

Policy Department Study: <u>The Brexit Negotiations: An Assessment of the Legal, Political and Institutional Situation in the UK (March 2017):</u>

European Parliamentary Research Service

Outcome of the special European Council (Article 50) meeting of 29 April 2017 (May 2017)

Outlook for Brexit negotiations (May 2017)

Brexit negotiations [What Think Tanks are thinking] (April 2017)

UK withdrawal from the European Union: Legal and procedural issues (March 2017)

Brexit Literature Update (March 2017):

Brexit and the European Union - General institutional and legal considerations (January 2017):

Brexit Implications for Employment and Social Affairs: Facts and Figures (January 2017):

Brexit - Possible Economic Impact for the Euro Area and the EU (December 2016):

Brexit: The United-Kingdom and EU Financial Services (December 2016):

The UK's Potential Withdrawal from the EU and Single Market Access under EU Financial Services Legislation (December 2016):

5. COMMENTARY AND ANALYSIS

JOURNAL ARTICLES

Bush, Stephen. Northern Ireland: the land that Brexit broke New Statesman, 17 October 2016

Gwyther, Matthew. <u>Future Business: Could Brexit take Northern Ireland back to the bad old days?</u> in *Management Today*, 22 Feb 2017

Meagher, Kevin. Brexit is the beginning of the end for Northern Ireland New Statesman, 27 July 2016

O'Reilly, Séamas. Overlooking the effect of Brexit on Northern Ireland is dangerous for the whole UK New Statesman, 28 June 2016

Murphy, Dr Mary C: Northern Ireland and the EU Referendum: The outcome, options and opportunities (The Journal of Cross Border Studies in Ireland, November 2016, Pp. 18-31)

Tonge, Jonathan: The impact of the withdrawal from the European Union upon Northern Ireland (The Political Quarterly, Vol. 87 [3] July-September 2016)

CENTRE FOR CROSS BORDER STUDIES

Centre for Cross Border Studies meeting with the Oireachtas Joint Committee on Arts, Heritage, Regional, Rural and Gaeltacht Affairs: Written Statement (10 May 2017)

<u>Submission to the House of Lords EU Select Committee's Brexit: Devolution Inquiry</u> (3 March 2017)

Briefing Notes for Meeting with the British-Irish Parliamentary Assembly: The implications of Brexit for trade for both Northern Ireland and Ireland (23 January 2017)

<u>Submission to the NI Affairs Committee Inquiry: Future of the land border with the Republic of Ireland</u> (21 October 2016)

Introductory statement to oral evidence submitted to the Joint Committee on Jobs, Enterprise and Innovation: Economic Implications of the UK Referendum Decision (20 October 2016)

Introductory statement to oral evidence submitted to the Joint Committee on the Implementation of the Good Friday Agreement: Implications of the UK Referendum decision for the GFA and its Institutions (20 October 2016)

<u>Submission to the House of Lords European Union Select Committee's Inquiry on Brexit and UK - Irish Relations</u> (4 October 2016)

Briefing Paper: Brexit and UK-Irish Relations (October 2016)

Presentation: Brexit and Cross-Border Relations: What will the future hold? (6 September, 2016)

CENTRE ON CONSTITUTIONAL CHANGE

Brexit and the Island of Ireland BYLINE Janice Morphet (28 April 2017)

More powers to Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland, or Power Grab? BYLINE Michael Keating (31 March 2017)

Brexit, EU Area-based Policies, and the Devolved Governments Author: David Bell, University of Stirling (February 2017)

Devolving Brexit BYLINE Charlie Jeffery (22 December 2016)

Negotiating Brexit in a devolved state: The dynamics of intergovernmental relations BYLINE Nicola McEwen (1 December 2016)

What role for the devolved nations in Brexit? BYLINE Michael Keating (2 November 2016)

<u>Scotland in the Single Market, rUK out – what would it take?</u> BYLINE Kirsty Hughes (20 October 2016)

<u>Can Scotland and Northern Ireland Stay in the Single Market?</u> BYLINE: Michael Keating (17 October 2016)

<u>Does Brexit Need the Consent of the Devolved Territories?</u> BYLINE: Michael Keating (8 September 2016)

<u>Disunited Kingdom: Will Brexit spark the disintegration of the UK?</u> BYLINE Nicola McEwen (31 August 2016)

Northern Ireland and Brexit: Now is not the time for talk of Irish unity BYLINE Mary C. Murphy (27 July 2016)

O'Leary, Brendan: <u>The Dalriada Document - Towards a multi-national Compromise that respects</u> diversity in the United Kingdom (13 July 2016)

Brexit: England's Opportunity is (Northern) Ireland's Difficulty (24 June 2016)

CHATHAM HOUSE, THE ROYAL INSTITUTE OF INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS

Research Paper: <u>Devolved External Affairs: The Impact of Brexit</u> (February 2017) Professor Richard G Whitman

Ireland's Dilemma BYLINE Bruce Clark (2 August 2016)

CONSTITUTION UNIT (UNIVERSITY COLLEGE LONDON)

Brexit Blog

Brexit Hub

Can the Brexit clock be stopped? BYLINE: Piet Eeckhout (11 April 2017)

Brexit, Devolution and the Future of Northern Ireland BYLINE Janice Morphet (27 March 2017)

Working Paper: The Process of Brexit: What Comes Next? Author: Dr Alan Renwick (January 2017)

Brexit and Northern Ireland: early indications are that post-Good Friday Agreement relationships will survive quite well BYLINE: Dr Brian Walker (9 August 2016)

<u>Brexit and Northern Ireland: key issues and possible consequences</u> BYLINE: Alan Whysall (15 July 2016)

DEMOCRATIC AUDIT UK

Wales and the Brexit vote: a case of turkeys voting for Christmas? BYLINE: Daniel Evans (11 August 2016)

Brexit and Northern Ireland: key issues and possible consequences BYLINE: Alan Whysall (19 July 2016)

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL RESEARCH INSTITUTE (ESRI)

The Product and Sector Level Impact of a Hard Brexit across the EU Authors: Martina Lawless, Edgar Morgenroth (November 2016)

Modelling the Medium to Long Term Potential Macroeconomic Impact of Brexit on Ireland (November 2016)

ERNST & YOUNG (IRELAND)

<u>Brexit: Presentshock - It is the reaction to an economic shock that will determine its impact</u> BYLINE Neil Gibson (17 November 2016)

EU DEBATE NI / CENTRE FOR DEMOCRACY AND PEACE BUILDING

Briefing Paper: <u>After the EU Referendum: Establishing the Best Outcome for Northern Ireland</u> Professor David Phinnemore and Dr. Lee McGowan (August 2016):

EURACTIV

EU says united Ireland would be automatic full member (2 May 2017)

A hard border 'will cause recession' in Ireland BYLINE: Marc Mahuzier (1 March 2017)

Brexit: The Northern Ireland conundrum BYLINE: Dick Roche (28 July 2016)

Brexit: What about the Northern Ireland Peace Process BYLINE Karlijn Jans (14 July 2016)

EUROPEAN COUNCIL ON FOREIGN RELATIONS

<u>Hard Borders of the Mind: Brexit, Northern Ireland and the Good Friday Agreement</u> BYLINE: Andrew Gilmore (13 April 2017)

Series: **Brexit: Responses**

EUROPEAN FUTURES

The Great Repeal Bill and the Challenge of Bringing Laws Home BYLINE Tobias Lock (5 April 2017)

<u>Scotland's Relationship with the EU after Brexit: Lessons from the Faroes</u> BYLINE Jacques Hartmann (29 March 2017)

Will Brexit Mean More Devolution to Scotland? BYLINE Mark Lazarowicz (17 February 2017)

EUROPEAN POLICY CENTRE

Report: Brexiting the Energy Union - What options for EU-UK energy and climate relations? AUTHOR: Marco Giuli (19 April 2017)

Discussion Paper: Northern Ireland and Brexit: the European Economic Area option Brian Doherty, John Temple Lang, Christopher McCrudden, Lee McGowan, David Phinnemore and Dagmar Schiek (1 April 2017)

Commentary: <u>Ulster says 'Remain' - Brexit and the Northern Irish election result</u> Author: Frank Mc Namara (10 April 2017)

Discussion Paper: How Europe sees Brexit Author Andrew Duff (24 January 2017)

GERMAN INSTITUTE FOR INTERNATIONAL AND SECURITY AFFAIRS

Negotiating with a Dis-United Kingdom The EU's Options Concerning Scotland and Northern Ireland in the Brexit Talks Nicolai von Ondarza and Julia Becker (March 2017)

A European "Special Relationship": Guiding Principles, Interests and Options for the EU-27 in the Brexit Talks Barbara Lippert, Nicolai von Ondarza (November 2016)

INSTITUTE FOR GOVERNMENT

Analysis: Legislating Brexit: The Great Repeal Bill and the wider legislative challenge (March 2017)

Briefing Paper: Whitehall's preparation for the UK's exit from the EU (December 2016)

Briefing Paper: Four-nation Brexit: How the UK and devolved governments should work together on leaving the EU (October 2016)

What happens if the UK and devolved governments can't agree on Brexit BYLINE: Akash Paun (23 September 2016)

<u>Presumed consent? The role of Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland in the Brexit process</u>
BYLINE: George Miller (11 August 2016)

THE INSTITUTE OF INTERNATIONAL AND EUROPEAN AFFAIRS (IIEA)

Brexit - Process and Players: A guide to the negotiations AUTHOR: Andrew Gilmore (April 2017)

Brexit Brief - Issue 18 (April 2017)

Brexit: A Status Report (20 January 2017)

<u>Theresa May's Brexit framework: What does it mean for Ireland?</u> BYLINE Andrew Gilmore (20 January 2017)

Brexit, the Good Friday Agreement and the European Convention on Human Rights BYLINE Tony Brown (9 January 2017)

Brexit and Free Movement of People (13 December 2016)

<u>Ireland in a Europe without Britain</u> BYLINE Brendan Halligan (9 Dec 2016)

Policy Brief: What does Brexit Mean for the Energy Sector in Ireland? (November 2016)

Policy Brief: Brexit: A Special Status for Northern Ireland? (October 2016)

The Future of the European Project after Brexit BYLINE: Aislinn Dwyer (22 July 2016)

Brexit: Round-up of views from think tanks BYLINE: Tony Brown (15 July 2016)

The Elements of a New EU-UK Relationship (12 July 2016)

Brexit: What does it mean for Ireland? (24 Jun 2016)

KPMG

Brexit – A Northern Ireland Perspective (June 2016)

LONDON SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICAL SCIENCE

Brexit's implications for Northern Ireland may be destabilising, but not fatal BYLINE Etain Tannam (6 April 2017)

Now Article 50 has been triggered, will the United Kingdom survive? BYLINE Janice Morphet (30 March 2017)

<u>Disruption and chaos: the potential impact of Brexit on Northern Ireland's and the UK's political stability</u> BYLINE Janice Morphet (9 March 2017)

<u>Scotland, Brexit and Spain: A special deal for Scotland is unlikely</u> BYLINE: Anderson, Paul (16 January 2017)

Northern Ireland after Brexit: a fragile peace put in jeopardy BYLINE Duncan Morrow and Jonny Byrne (11 January 2017)

Northern Ireland is appallingly ill-prepared for Brexit. May and Foster must get talking BYLINE: David Phinnemore (24 November 2016)

Why the Human Rights Act should not be repealed: an Irish perspective BYLINE Conor Gearty (24 September 2016)

Exit plan: how Scotland and Northern Ireland can remain in the EU BYLINE Brendan O'Leary (7 July 2016)

Could a 'reverse Greenland' arrangement keep Scotland and Northern Ireland in the EU? BYLINE Ulrik Pram Gad (7 July 2016):

<u>A contested Brexit would be disruptive for Ireland, both North and South</u> BYLINE Paul Gillespie (5 July 2016

NEVIN ECONOMIC RESEARCH INSTITUTE (NERI)

<u>Economics: institutions, borders, norms and sentiments do matter</u> BYLINE: Tom Healy (3 February 2017)

Thinking aloud about Brexit BYLINE: Tom Healy (15 January 2016)

Quarterly Economic Observer (Winter 2016). See especially Part 2 – 'The Implications of a 'Hard BREXIT' for the Northern Ireland Economy'

Getting ready for Brexit (21 October 2016)

PRIME

Brexit, Article 50 and the UK economy: discredit where discredit is due BYLINE: John Weeks (5 April 2017)

<u>Flaky economics? Brexit, trade and the Treasury estimates</u> BYLINE: Graham Gudgin et al. (18 March 2017)

PWC IRELAND

Brexit Insights

Brexit and the Irish food sector BYLINE: Owen McFeely (27 April 2017)

The signal from the noise - Brexit: What do I do now? Issue 1 (March 2017)

<u>Engaging UK regions in EU negotiations makes devolution, "more important than ever".</u> BYLINE: Stephanie Hyde (3 August 2016)

Brexit: The implications for Irish business (July 2016)

QPOL (QUEEN'S UNIVERSITY BELFAST)

<u>The EU's farming policy is hated – but what comes next may be worse</u> BYLINE Dr Viviane Gravey (10 May 2017)

<u>Article 50 triggered: here's what happens now</u> BYLINE: Professor David Phinnemore (29 March 2017)

Hard Brexit - perspectives for the island of Ireland? BYLINE: Dagmar Schiek (28 February 2017)

<u>Brexit: What Next Once Article 50 is Triggered?</u> BYLINE: Professor David Phinnemore (15 February 2017)

Bored of borders already? Building "The Wall" is only the start BYLINE: Dr Katy Hayward (14 February 2017)

How much will Brexit hurt? BYLINE: Dr Sergey Popov (25 January 2017)

Four 'green lines' for Brexit negotiators looking to protect the environment BYLINE: Dr Viviane Gravey (13 January 2017)

Why the UK can't just pick and choose from the EU menu after Brexit BYLINE: Professor David Phinnemore (14 September 2016)

<u>Detoxifying the UK's exit from the EU: a multi-national compromise is possible</u> BYLINE: Brendan O'Leary (2 August 2016)

Northern Ireland prepares to enter a post-Brexit quagmire BYLINE: Professor David Phinnemore (24 June 2016)

THE UK IN A CHANGING EUROPE (ESRC)

Northern Ireland: understanding the Brexit vote and its implications for the border BYLINE John Garry et al. (27 April 2017)

Northern Ireland's snap election leads to reinforced opposition towards Brexit BYLINE: By Dr Katy Hayward and Dr Lee McGowan (17 March 2017)

We are still a long way from federalism BYLINE Professor Michael Keating (26 January 2017)

<u>Brexit and UK-Irish relations: between low and high politics?</u> BYLINE Dr Viviane Gravey (Queen's University Belfast) et al. (19 December 2016)

<u>Fortress island Britain? What could happen to UK borders after Brexit</u> BYLINE: Professor Cathal McCall (15 December 2016)

Northern Ireland and Brexit: struggling and divided over 'what next' BYLINE Professor David Phinnemore (15 November 2016)

Negotiating Brexit: What does Wales want? BYLINE Jo Hunt and Rachel Minto (8 November 2016)

What role for the devolveds in Brexit? BYLINE Professor Michael Keating (4 November 2016)

Brexit and Beyond - How the UK might leave the EU (2 November 2016)

Can Scotland withdraw and remain in the EU? BYLINE Professor Richard Rose (19 October 2016)

<u>Does Brexit need the consent of the devolved territories?</u> BYLINE Professor Michael Keating (19 September 2016)

Avoiding the abyss: making a case for Northern Ireland ahead of Brexit BYLINE Dr Lee McGowan (5 September 2016)

ULSTER FARMERS' UNION

News Release: <u>UFU looks to the future for a new Domestic Agricultural Policy post-Brexit</u> (11 May 2017)

Discussion document: Brexit - Options for a New Domestic Agricultural Policy (May 2017)

ULSTER UNIVERSITY

News Release Northern Ireland: Post Brexit (29 March 2017)

Economic Policy Centre Outlook, Winter 2016: The potential impact of Brexit

6. MEDIA COVERAGE

The Irish Independent, May 23 2017

Invest NI chief hails Brexit freedom from EU state aid rules BYLINE: John Mulgrew

Belfast Telegraph, May 23 2017

EU doctors in Northern Ireland must be given assurances; Editor's Viewpoint

Belfast Telegraph, 19 May 2017

Business chiefs say all-Ireland electricity market must be Brexit priority

Belfast Telegraph, 16 May 2017

<u>Fears of Ireland hard border nightmare - residents whose lives straddle line on a map BYLINE:</u>
Donna Deeney

The Irish Times, 15 May 2017

North is EU's business in Brexit negotiations; Peace process and impact on Republic make Northern Ireland a critical issue in EU bargaining BYLINE: Caoilfhionn Gallagher

The Irish Times, 13 May 2017

Impact of Brexit on Ireland to be 'negative and significant'; Significant resources must be set aside in readiness for impending risks, warns IMF BYLINE: Cliff Taylor, Charlie Taylor

MailOnline, May 13, 2017

Theresa May insists Brexit will NOT bring back a hard border to Northern Ireland after Tony Blair claims leaving the EU will be peace process 'disaster' BYLINE: Rebecca Taylor

News Letter, May 12, 2017

Tony Blair calls for Britain-Ireland deal on border to limit Brexit damage

The Irish Times, May 12, 2017

Brexit will come at a cost, admits EU's chief negotiator; Barnier pledges full support for Ireland saying EU wants to achieve fair deal BYLINE: Michael O'Regan, Marie O'Halloran

The Irish Independent, 11 May 2017

EU border management means custom controls, warns Michel Barnier

Belfast Telegraph, 11 May 2017

<u>Balmoral Show: Ready your business for reality of Brexit, union urges farmers</u> BYLINE Richard Halleron

Belfast Telegraph, 11 May 29017

<u>Charlie Flanagan: Return of power-sharing in Northern Ireland absolutely crucial as process of</u>
Brexit picks up momentum

The Irish Times, 11 May 2017

North's farmers in 'buffer zone' but warned of Brexit problems BYLINE: Francess McDonnell

The Irish Independent, 10 May 2017

No easy solution to border issue, warns ex-taoiseach Bertie Ahern

Belfast Telegraph, 6 May 2017

Brexit is neither a partition-maker, nor a partition-breaker - that decision will rest with Northern Ireland voters BYLINE: By John Downing

Express Online, 6 May 2017

<u>'Plan for United Ireland' Professor warns Britain will LOSE Northern Ireland after Brexit</u> BYLINE: Joey Millar

Express Online, 4 May 2017

'The effects will be much worse' Hard Brexit will cost Ireland 10,000 jobs, economist says

BYLINE: Rebecca Flood

Irish Independent, 3 May 2017

Lords advise against new customs controls with North BYLINE: By Margaret Donnelly

Belfast Telegraph, 3 May 2017

Northern Ireland business groups arrive in Brussels to press their case over Brexit concerns

BYLINE: By John Mulgrew

The Irish Times, 1 May 2017

How did Ireland achieve a crucial Brexit coup? Months of graft and cunning pays off with

prominence in negotiations stance BYLINE: Denis Staunton

The Guardian, 3 May 2017

The six Brexit traps that will defeat Theresa May BYLINE Yanis Varoufakis

Belfast Telegraph, 28 April 2017

Brexit: UK must settle issues of 'people, money and Ireland' before EU talks can begin, says

Donald Tusk

The Guardian, 28 April 2017

Europe could allow a united Ireland to join EU after Brexit; leaders expected to discuss statement at weekend summit that if the island reunifies, the north will automatically regain EU membership

BYLINE: Jennifer Rankin

Belfast Telegraph, 25 April 2017

Republic's loss can be our gain if Northern Ireland has voice in Brexit talks BYLINE: John Simpson

agendaNi, 8 April 2017

Brexit: implications for Northern Ireland

agendaNi, 8 April 2017

Politicians must deliver Northern Ireland's Brexit response

agendaNi, 8 April 2017

The EEA option for Northern Ireland

agendaNi, 8 April 2017

Frictionless or fantasy?

The Irish Times, 24 march 2017

A shared-space solution to Ireland's Brexit Border problem; a deal could allow free passage across the island with rules on entry and exit BYLINE: Philip Pettit

Belfast Telegraph, 4 April 2017

Brexit: Why being an island might just help us to dodge a hard border; QUB's Professor James Anderson explains case for a 'hybrid solution' to the Brexit dilemmas facing Ireland north and south

Belfast Telegraph, 29 March 2017

We want optimum Brexit deal for Northern Ireland within the UK but outside EU, James Brokenshire says

Belfast Telegraph, 29 March 2017

Brexit 'the biggest political and economic challenge Northern Ireland has faced this century'
BYLINE Margaret Canning

Belfast Telegraph, March 28, 2017

Northern Ireland could rejoin EU if it votes for united Ireland, says Brexit minister David Davis; while Scotland 'would be forced to join back of the queue', a united Ireland would not need to reapply for membership

The Irish Times, March 28, 2017

<u>Ireland will not be able to block Brexit deal; Final agreement will be passed by majority voting, says senior official BYLINE: Pat Leahy</u>

Belfast Telegraph, March 21, 2017

Why uncertain post-Brexit future awaits Northern Ireland's farmers BYLINE: By John Simpson

Belfast Telegraph, 18 March 2017

Mary McAleese: Brexit could create fresh division in Northern Ireland BYLINE Adrian Rutherford

Belfast Telegraph, 17 March 2017

Union: Hard Brexit will put thousands of jobs in Northern Ireland at risk BYLINE Margaret Canning

Belfast Telegraph, 16 March 2017

Brexit chief Davis plans digital border in Ireland - rules out checkpoints BYLINE Michael McHugh and Allan Preston

The Irish News, 10 March 2017

Brexit without a deal with EU would be 'catastrophic' for Northern Ireland BYLINE Kate Ferguson

Belfast Telegraph, 9 March 2017

Dublin 'must seek special status for Northern Ireland within EU' in Brexit talks

Belfast Telegraph, 8 March 2017

Brexit poses danger for Northern Ireland progress, warn peers BYLINE Jon Vale

The Telegraph, 4 March 2017

Ireland: The forgotten frontier of Brexit BYLINE: Peter Foster

The Guardian, 27 February 2017

Peter Hain: hard Brexit puts Northern Ireland peace process at risk; Former minister introduces amendment to article 50 bill in Lords, saying government must 'support maintenance of open border' BYLINE Peter Walker

The Independent, 26 February 2017

Brexit threatens political co-operation in Northern Ireland, says man who negotiated Good Friday Agreement; Senator George Mitchell believes fact both UK and Ireland were members of EU was 'important factor' in starting peace process BYLINE: Caroline Mortimer

Sunday Independent, 26 February 2017

Brexit talks will force us to make some difficult choices; Ireland has more to lose than any of the remaining member states in the coming Brexit negotiations, writes Colm McCarthy

The Observer, 25 February 2017

Peace in Ireland depends upon an open border; Years of progress could be wiped out by a hard Brexit BYLINE: Peter Hain

The Independent, 23 February 2017

<u>Jean-Claude Juncker doesn't want Northern Ireland and Republic to have post-Brexit hard border; The EU will work with Ireland to 'minimise the impact' of Brexit, says Commission president BYLINE: Jon Sharman</u>

Management Today, February 2017

Could Brexit take Northern Ireland back to the bad old days? The province faces damaging trade tariffs and a return to restrictions on movement between the North and the South after the UK leaves the EU. There may be trouble ahead. BYLINE Matthew Gwyther

The Irish Times, 13 February 2017

UK not taking seriously Brexit impact on Ireland; Ireland could become one of the most economically damaged EU countries post-Brexit BYLINE: Nick Clegg

The Guardian, 8 February 2017

Irish border checks will be impossible after Brexit, says ambassador; Daniel Mulhall says border between Ireland and Northern Ireland is invisible and predicts EU will treat it as special case BYLINE Patrick Wintour

Belfast Telegraph, 6 February 2017

Northern Ireland beyond Brexit: the unanswered questions are troubling; Lack of detail in government's White Paper about province's future breeds only doubt and confusion, writes Ciaran McGonagle

Belfast Telegraph, 6 February 2017

Brexit plan reiterates UK and Ireland's 'unique relationship' BYLINE: By Kevin Doyle

The Irish Times, 3 February 2017

Theresa May cares little about Ireland's Brexit worries; British prime minister's talk of a 'frictionless' Border has already been exposed as a fantasy BYLINE: Noel Whelan

The Irish Times, 31 January 2017

Theresa May: 'I know what is at stake for Ireland in Brexit'; UK is committed to retaining a special bond with the Republic, even as we leave the EU

The Irish News, 31 January 2017

Northern Ireland 'front and centre' in UK negotiating list, Brexit secretary says

Belfast Telegraph, 30 January 2017

Enda Kenny backs Theresa May's 'friction-free' trading goal post-Brexit; Mr Kenny and Mrs May insisted they do not want to see a return to the "border of the past" between Northern Ireland and the Republic of Ireland

Belfast Telegraph, 27 January 2017

Brexit: More Northern Ireland firms may follow Almac and expand in Republic BYLINE: By Margaret Canning

Belfast Telegraph, 25 January 2017

<u>Brexit: Leaders face uphill struggle to make Northern Ireland's voice heard</u> BYLINE: By Prof Rory O'Connell

The Independent, 25 January 2017

Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland have been betrayed over Brexit again and again - but this week's betrayal was the worst; It is simply impossible for the UK to leave the customs union without a hard border being installed in Ireland, either around the parameters of the island of Ireland or between Northern Ireland and the Republic. Either would damage trade - and quite possibly wipe out entire industries BYLINE: Michael Walker

Irish Examiner, 24 January 2017

Enda Kenny: Ireland has a plan to deal with Brexit BYLINE: Juno McEnroe

Belfast Telegraph, 23 January 2017

Brexit 'could pose risk to financing' of Northern Ireland business BYLINE: By John Mulgrew

Business World, 19 January 2017

Hard Brexit will be a double edged sword for Ireland warns Goodbody BYLINE: Robert McHugh